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~ AND FINAL ORDEj
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) Proceeding under Section
) I423(e) of the Safe 9rinking

) w."" Act." tJ"'r 300h-',,)

t. STATUTORY AND REGULATORY AUTHOklTY

1[ is Consent Agreement and Final Order ("CAFO") is entered into bt the Director, Water
~ otection Division, United Slates Environmental Protection Agency ~"EPA"), Region III
('I' omplainant") and CNX Gas Company LLC ("Respondent" or "C~X"), pursuant to Section
I 23(a) and (c) of the Safe Drinking Water Act ("SDWA"), 42 U.S.C! § 300h-2(a) and (c)•

.a d the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative IAssessment of Civil
~ Inalties, Issua~ce of Compliance or Corrective Action Orders, and t1~e Revocation.
1 rmination or Suspension of Pennits, 40 C.F.R. Part 22. The partie~ having agreed to
s, tlement-of Respondent's SDWA violations, this CAFO commenee~ and concludes this
~ tion pursuant to 40 C.F.R. §§ 22.13(b), 22.1 8(b)(2) and (3). SubpBf I of 40 C.F.R. Part 22
~ plies to this proceeding. The EPA Administrator has delegated the lauthority to take these
a lions to the Regional Administrator for EPA, Region Ill, who in tU

t
has delegated the

~ thority to the Water Protection Division Director of EPA. Region I ,) ("Director").

I

~ ction I422(c) of the SDWA. 42 U.S.C. § 300h-2(c), requires EPA 0 administer the
l~ derground Injection Control ("UIC") program in states which do nbt have approved slate
~ ograms ("primacy"). The Commonwealth of Pennsylvania has not ~cquired primacy of the
I C program. Therefore. effective June 25, 1984. EPA Region III b9gan direct

'\ pl~~'.iM "ro"" U'C p"",""" i. '-'y''''~' "'" 40 C.P.Rr47-'"1.
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Th UIC regulations at 40 C.F.R. § 144.1 I prohibit any undergrouoo njection, except
int a well authorized by rule or by permit issued under the UIC program. See also 42 U.S.C.
§ 3 Oh(b)(I )(A).

Thl regulations at 40 C.F.R. § I44.6(b)(I ), define Class II injection "'jells as wells which (I)
inj' t fluids which are brought to the surface in connection with naturrl gas storage
op: ations, or conventional oil or natural gas production and may be ~ommingled with waste
w<i rs from gas plants which are an integral part of production operat,ons, unless those waters
ard lassified as a hazardous waste at the time of injection; (2) For enllt

l

anced recovery of oil or
na, ral gas; and (3) For storage of hydrocarbons which are liquid at s~andard temperature and
pre sure. I '

pJ uant to Section I423(c)(2) of the SDWA, 42 U.S.C. § 300h-2(C)(~)' as amended by the
Dd t Collection Improvement Act of 1996 (codified at 28 U.S.C. § 2461) and the subsequent
Ci l I Monetary Penalty Inflation Adjustment Rule, 40 C.F.R. Part I9j the Administrator of the
E~ is authorized to issue an order requiring compliance and/or assessing administrative
pe lties against any person who has violated an applicable UIC prog~am requirement. For
vi~, ations pertaining to Class II injection wells occurring between MJrch 15,2004 and
Jail ary 12, 2009, the Administrator may assess a penalty amount that is up to $6,500 per day
fo~ ach violation, and a total penalty amount that is up to $157,500. I

I n. FINDINGS OF FACT' ,

cJ is a "person" within the meaning of Section 1401(12) of the SD~A, 42 U.S.C.

§1Of(l2).

In lay, 2005, Respondent submitted to EPA a permit application for the operation of the
M~ is Run I Injection Well located within the Consolidation Coal C mpanyabandoned
BI I ksville I mine in Greene County, Pennsylvania ("Facility").

I

R9 pondent's permit application provided operational information relevant to the Morris Run
I I, jection Well that included analytical results of produced water satPles from two'local
co bed methane ("CBM") wells known as the Kiger and Blockhous wells. The analytical
re~~lts provided by Respondent showed that the total dissolved solid ("TDS") concentration
in /he Kiger well sample was 18,200 milligrams per liter ("mg/I") an

1
in the Blockhouse well

sa i 'pIe was 10,400 mg/1. Respondent stated in the permit applicatio that it anticipated that
w~ r quality will not vary significantly from well to well.
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I 1

Rb pondent's permit application provided that "[t]he area immediately ~ound the injection
sit will be secured with a chain-link fence fitted with a locked entry galte. Additionally, the
tal ker truck tap-in will be situated within a locked valve box and/or fi+d with a locking
cd nectoT. Any breaches in the security of the injection point will be remedied immediately."

,

o September I, 2005, EPA issued Permit Number PAS2D21 OBGRE tthe "Permit") to
R~ pondent as the permittee authorizing it to inject coal bed methane flfid through a Class JlD
inj elion well, the Morris Run I Injection Well, into a mine pool, the upper level of which is
atl n elevation of greater than 700 feet below the ground surface.

P, I, Section D.4 of the Permit (Proper Operation and Maintenance) ~rovides that the
pI; mittee shall at all times properly operate and maintain all facilities ard systems of
tr~ tment and control and related appurtenances which are installed an1 used by the permittee
tol chieve compliance with the permit, The provision further provides~that proper operation
a1 ma.in.tenance includes effective performance, adequate funding, ad iquate operator staffing
an trammg.

P~ I, Section D.5 (Duty to Provide Information) of the Permit provid, s that if the permittee
be omes aware of any incomplete or incorrect information in the permit application or
s~ sequent reports, the permillee shall promptly submit information adrressing these
de lciencies. I

pl II. Section C.2 (Monitoring Requirements) of the Permit provides [Ihat cumulative volume
s~ 11 be continuously monitored.

pl II, Section D.3 .a.2 (Reporting and Notification Requirements, TW

f

lnty-four Hour
R I

, orting) of the Pcrmit provides that the permittee shall orally report 0 the Director within
24 hours any noncompliance which may endanger health or the enviro ment. The Permit
fJ her provides that any noncompliance with a permit condition shall e included as
inl rmation which must be reported orally within 24 hours. I

pl lIJ. Section B.2 of the Permit (lnjeetion Fluid) provides that the p~rmittee shall not inject
aJ other fluid, other than the fluid produced in association with CNX!s CBM production
wi Is ("produced fluid"). 1

Al all times since September 1,2005, Respondent has been the perrnitlee and has operated the
M rris Run I Injection Well and the property where such well is locat~d.

c l

utilized contract haulers to transport produced fluid to the Morri~ Run I Injection Well
f9 disposal. Such contract haulers also transported sewage for treatmhnt and disposal at other
fa ilities. I

I 3 1
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E, conducted inspections of the Facility on August 7, II, 19 and 2\, 2008.

A~ he time of the August 7, 2008 EPA inspection, the gate at the Facility was open, no lock
wr installed on the ball valves at the truck offloading area, no flow ~r pressure meter was in
0PI ration in the flow line at the Morris Run I Injection Well, the wir9 from the previous flow
me er had been cut and was hanging from the fence, and no CNX personnel or opcrators were
pr~ ent at the Facility. . II

F) December 23,2006 until at least August 20,2008, no flow metfr was operational at the
Fa l ility to continuously monitor the flow rate, and cumulative volume.

D~ ing the period of time from December 23, 2006 until at least Auglst 20, 2008,
R~: pondent's only method of recording the volume injected to the Mbrris Run I Injection
W I was a truck log book kept at the Facility.

. Sit e September 1,2005, not all truck drivcrs that discharged to the orris Run 1 Injection
Wr I recorded or accurately recorded in the log book at the Facility t e volume of produced
wa r that they discharged.

In I n August 26, 2008 letter, EPA requested Respondent to provide s 'ecific information
pe, aining to Respondent's operation of the Facility.

I
In espondent's responses to EPA dated September 25,2008, FebruarY 5,2009 and March 20,
20 it provided sampling results of the fluids deposited into the MO+S Run I Injection Well
by ontract haulers for the approximate period of time from Septemby 2007 through March
20 . According to the sample results, at least 100 truck loads of pro~ucedwater were
deP sited into the Morris Run I Injection Well that had TDS levels tHat varied significantly
frd the expected TDS levels provided in the permit application and kight truck loads of
pr~ uced water were deposited into the Morris Run I Injection Well that contained E.coli.

E.J Ii may be an indicator of the presence of sewage.

Thl trucks that haul CBM produced water to the Facility may havc allo hauled septic waste to
otH r locations.

\

In i s permit application, Respondent did not identify E.coli as a cons ituent that would be
prd

l

ent in the CBM production fluid disposed at the Morris Run I Inj ction Well.

In letter dated March 12, 20 I0, CNX advised EPA that it intends to ermanently close the
M6 is Run I Injection Well and that closure will be performed in aC90rdance with the
PIJ ging and Abandonment Plan in Attachment Q to the application tr the VIC permit. CNX
als

l
stated that the plugging and abandonment would be coordinated I ith the Pennsylvania
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~ A conducted inspections of the Facility on August 7, II. 19 and 20) 2008.'
I I .•
: t the time of the August 7. 2008 EPA inspection. the gate at the Facility was open. no lock

s installed on the ball valves at the truck oflloading area, no flow ot pressure meter was in
<> eration in the flow line at the Morris Run I Injection Well, the wire11from the previous flow

I eter had been cut and was hanging from the fence, and no CNX per onnel or operators were
Wesent at the Facility.

I
~ om December 23, 2006 until at least August 20, 2008. no flow met4r was operational at the1cility to continuously monitor the now rate. and cumulative volum~. •

I ring the period oftime from December 23, 2006 until at least AugJst 20. 2008.
I spondent's only method of recording the volume injected to the M6rris Run I Injection
I ell was a truck log book kept at the Facility. I.

Jnce September 1,2005, not all truck drivers that discharged to the .I·orris Run I Injection
: ell recorded or accurately recorded in the log book at the Facility t~ volume of produced
\~ tel' that they discharged. I

III an August 26, 2008 letter. EPA requested Respondent to provide s~ecific information
T? rtaining to Respondent's operation of the Facility.

,

II Respondent's responses to EPA dated September 25. 2008, FebrualY 5. 2009 and March 20,
2 09 it provided sampling results of the fluids deposited into the Morris Run I Injection Well* contract haulers for the approximate period of time from Septemb1~ 2007 through March
:\ 09. According to the sample results, at least 100 truck loads of pr~pucedwater were
d posited into the Morris Run I Injection Well that had TDS levels tHat varied significantly
~ m the expected TDS levels provided in the permit application and fight truck loads of
II oduced water were deposited into the Morris Run I Injection Well 1hat contained E.coli.

I .Icoli may be an indicator of the presence of sewage.

e trucks that haul CBM produced water to the Facility may have alro hauled septic waste to
~ her locations. I

II its permit application. Respondent did not identify E.coli as a consfituent that would be
'I esent in the CBM production fluid disposed at the Morris Run) Injlection Well. .

j a letter dated March 12,2010. CNX advised EPA that it intends tolperrnanentlY close the
I orris Run I Injection Well and that closure will be performed in aCf,0rdance with the
Pugging and Abandonment Plan in Attachment Q to the application for the VIC permit. CNX
~ so stated that the plugging and abandonment would be coordinated IWith the Pennsylvania
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~ partment of Environmental Protection ("PADEP") in addition to EP. since the well is also
c~ ered by the PADEP Coal Mining Activity Permit for the BlaCkSVil\~ No.2 mine. .

11 order to resolve the violations described herein, EPA and ReSPonde]t enter into this CAFO.

III. CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

Ri spondent's failure, as provided in Section II (Findings of Fact) abovF' to provide operator
sl mng at the Facility constitutes a violation of Part I, Section 0.4 (Prbper Operation and
Mintenance) of the Permit and the SDWA.

~ spondent's failure, as provided in Section II (Findings of Fact) abo'le. to promptly submit
in onnation to EPA regarding TDS levels present in the produced water disposed into the
~4 rris Run I Injection Well that were significantly higher than the le~els included in the
pi it application constitutes a violation of Part I, Section 0.5 (Duty)o Provide Information)
o the Pennit and the SOWA. I

R spondent's failure, as provided in Section II (Findings of Fact) abo~e. to promptly submit
ill ormation to EPA regarding E. coli present in the produced water disposed into the Morris
~, n I Injection Well that Respondent did not identify in the Pennit a~lication constitutes
vi lations of Part 1, Section 0.5 (Duty to Provide Infonnation) of the fennit and the SDWA.

Jspondent's failure, as provided in Section II (Findings of Fact) aboje, to continuously
111 nitor the cumulative volume during the disposal of produced fluid 'nto the Morris Run I
I~ ection Well constitutes violations ofPart II. Section C.2 (Monitori g Requirements) of the
P rmit and the SDWA. 1
Jspondent's failure, as provided in Section II (Findings of Fact) abo e, to report to the9rector its noncompliance with the Permit conditions constitutes viollations of Part II. Section
q3.a.2 (Reporting and Notification Requirements, Twenty-four Hour Reporting) of the
Pi nnit and the SDWA.

B sed on the Findings of Fact set forth in Section II above, the Complainant eoncludes that
Rspondent has violated the requirements set forth in the Pennit and is liable for a civil

p ally in :~or::~:t::e:::;:::~:: :::::::E::20~t:~:~::C)(2).
II order to resolve the violations described herein, and to provide a le~al framework for the
~ yment of a penalty, EPA and Respondent enter into this ORDER ON CONSENT.
it spondent consents to issuance of this CAFO and agrees to undert4e all actions required by
ii, terms and conditions. Respondent consents to the assessment of tile civil penalty herein

I
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a d consents to issuance of the eomplianee order contained herein.

1spondent admits to EPA's jurisdiction as set forth in Section I Ofth1s CAFO, and waives
a y dcfenses it might have as to jurisdiction and venue. Respondent agrees not to contest
E A jurisdiction to issue this CAFO and not to contest EPAjurisdicti~n to enforce the terms
d this CAFO. .

Fl spondent neither admits nor denies the Findings of Fact set forth in Section II and
I

a ncJusions of Law set forth in Section 1\1, above.

~l ch party to this ~ction shall pay its own costs and attorney fees.

~' e provisions of this CAFO shall be binding upon the R~spondent, ar
l
d its officers,

9 'ncipals, directors, successors and assigns.

J sed on the foregoing FINDINGS, and having taken into account th~ factors list~d in Section
II 23(c)(4)(B) of the SDWA, 42 U.S.C. § 300h-2(c)(4)(B), inCIUding~ut not limited to: (I) the
s riousness of Respondent's violations cited in Paragraphs 30 throug 34, (2) the economic
Jl nefit accruing to Respondent resulting from the violations; (3) Res londent's history of other
J lations of Part C of the SDWA; (4) Respondent's good faith efforts to compl)' with the
~ WA; (5) the economic impact of the penalty described below on t~e Respondent; (6) other
5ch matters as j~stice may require; and (7) the administrative record;1 EPA; under the
a thority ofseclJon 1423(a) and (c) of the SDWA, 42 U.S.C. §§ 300h·

1

2(a) and (c), HEREBY
DERS AND RESPONDENT HEREBY CONSENTS:

Order ~ r Com Iianee I

42. I spondent certifies as of the date that this CAFO becomes effective ~ursuanl to Section IX
( ffective Date), below that all violations alleged in this CAFO have reen remedied and that
t e Morris Run I Injection Well is no longer in operation. I

I all times after the effective date as provided in Section IX (Effeclile Date) of this CAFO
I spondent shall not operate the Morris Run 1 Injection Well.

'ithin (60) sixty days of the effective date of this CAFO, Responde t shall plug and abandon
e Morris Run 1 Injection Well, in accordance with the following re~uirements:

38.

37.

Part III.C of the Permit;

45.

. Attachment Q (Plugging and Abandonment Plan) ofthe Pc

I espondent shaIl noti!)' the Director (45) fort)'-five days before the

it Application

ugging and abandonment

6
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of It e Morris Run I Injection Well.

Wi hin (30) thirty days after plugging the Morris Run I Injection Well, the Respondent shall
su I it a completed EPA Form Number 7520-14 (Plugging and Aban~onment Plan) and a
re~ rt to the EPA which shall consist of a statement that the Morris R

h
I Injection Well was

plu ged and abandoned in accordance with Part m.c of the Permit.

All submissions required by this CAFO shall be signed by a responsi Ie corporate officer of at
le~ t the level of vice-president, who shall make the following certifi1ation:

I "I certify under the penalty of law that I have personally examIned and am familiar

I
with the information submitted in this document and all attachm~nts and that, based on
my inquiry of those individuals immediately responsible for obta'ning the information, I

I believe that the information is true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are
I significant penalties for submitting false information, including t e possibility of fine and
I impri sonment."

U~ '1 such time as the Morris Run I Injection Well is plugged and ab ndoned, Respondent
sh11 maintain security at the Facility as necessary to assure that no w~stewateror any other
flul s are discharged into the Morris Run I Injection Well. I

I I
All'nformation required to be submitted to EPA pursuant to this CA10 shall be sent to:

I Karen D. Johnson I

I
Ground Water Enforcement Branch I
U.S. EPA, Region m

I 1650 Arch Street (3WP22) I
·1 Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029

Phone: (215) 814-5445 I

A""'mJ of p,,,, I

SO. In 1ttlement of the allegations enumerated above, Respondent agrees Ito pay the civil penalty
ami unt of one hundred fifty-seven thousand five hundred dollars ($1~7,500) in satisfaction of
alii laims for civil penalties for the violations cited herein. This does tot constitute a
"dS and" as that term is defined in the Equal Access to Justice Act, 21~ U.S.c. § 2412.5 I.
Wit in thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Order, Respondent~hall pay a civil penalty
of e hundred fifty-seven thousand five hundred dollars ($157,500) i

l

the following manner:

A. All payments by Respondent shall reference Respondent's name and address, and the

7
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Docket Number of this action, i.e., SDWA 03-2009-0224;

D!

All checks shall be made payable to "United States Treasury";

AII payments made by check and sent by regular mail shall be tdressed to:

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Fines and Penalties
Cincinnati Finance Center
P.O. Box 979077
St. Louis, MO 63197-9000

Contact: Eric Volck 513-487-2105 !
All payments made by check and sent by overnight delivery se~lvice shall bc addressed
for delivery to:

U.S. Bank
Government Lockbox 979077
U.S. EPA. Fines & Penalties
1005 Convention Plaza
Mail Station SL-MO-C2-GL
St. Louis, MO 63101

Contact: 314-418-1028

All payments made by check in any currency drawn on banks ~ith no USA
branches shall be addressed for delivery to:

Cincinnati Finance
US EPA, MS-NWD
26 W. M.L. King Drive j
Cincinnati, OB 45268-0001

All payments made by electronic wire transfer shall be directe. to:

Federal Reserve Bank of New York
ABA = 021030004
Account No. = 68010727
SWIFT address = FRNYUS33
33 Liberty Street
New York, NY 10045

8
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Field Tag 4200 of the Fedwire message should read:
"D 68010727 Environmental Protection Agency"

All electronic payments made through the Automated Clearing ouse (ACH), also
known as Remittance Express (REX), shall be directed to:

US Treasury REX I Cashlink ACH Receiver
ABA = 051036706

Account No.: 310006, Environmental Protection AgenlY
CTX Format Transaction Code 22 - Checking

Physical location of U.S. Treasury facility;
5700 Rivertech Court
Riverdale, MD 20737

Contact: Jesse White 301-887-6548 or REX, 1-866-234-5681

H. On-Line Payment Option:

WWW.PAY.GOVIPAYGOV

Enter sfo 1.1 in the search field. Open and complete th form.

I. Additional payment guidance is available at:

http://www.epa.gov/ocfo/finservices/make_ayayment.tm
J. A copy of Respondent's check or a copy of Respondent's electi nic fund transfer shall

be sent simultaneously to the following:

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Regional Hearing Clerk (3RCOO)
1650 Arch Street
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103-2029;

Mr. Stcve Platt
Ground Water & Enforcemcnt Branch
U.S. Envirorunental Protection Agency
Region Jl1 (Mail Code 3WP22)
1650 Arch Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029;

and .

9
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Judith Hykel
Senior Assistant Regional Counsel
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Region III (Mail Code 3RC20)
1650 Arch Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103·2029

ailure to pay any portion of the penalty assessed by this CAFO as diEcted subjects the
espondent to a collection action under Section I 423(c)(7) of the SD A, 42 U.S.C. § 3OOh­

2 c)(7). The validity, amount and appropriateness of the penalty are ,ot subject to review in a
c Ilection proceeding. 15 U.S.C. § 2615(a)(4)(A). Pursuantto 31 U.s.C. § 3717, EPA is
e ltitled to assess interest on unpaid penalties, and 8 charge to cover tHe cost of processing and
h dling a delinquent claim. Interest will begin to accrue on this civil penalty if the

spondent has not paid it within fifteen days of the date due. Intere~t will be assessed at the
r te of the United States Treasury tax and loan rate. 40 C.F.R. § 13.11. In addition, a
q arterly nonpayment penalty charge may be assessed on any delinquFnt debt pursuant to
S ction 1423(c)(7) of the SDWA, 42 U.S.C. § 300h-2. In addition, ErA will assess a $15.00
a ministrative handling charge for administrative costs for the first thirty (30) day period after
t e payment is due and an additional $15.00 for each subsequent thirt \ (30) days the penalty
r mains due.

V. GENERAL PROVISIONS

T is CAFO shall not relieve Respondent of its obligation to comply ith all applicable
p ovisions of federal, state or local law and ordinance, nor shall it be 10nstrued to be a ruling
01 , or determination of, any issue related to any federal, state or local permit. This CAFO
d es not constitute a waiver, suspension or modification of the requirdments of 40 C.F.R.
§ 147.1950-1955, which remain in full foree and effect.

V olations of the terms of this CAFO after its effective date or the dat of final judgment in
th event of an appeal under Section 1423(c)(6) of the SDWA, 42 U..C. § 300h-2(c)(6), may
s bject the Respondent to a civil action in a United States district cou with penalties up to
$ 7.500 per day of violation as authorized in S"ctions 1423(b) of the ,DWA, 42 U.S.c.
§ 00h-2(b).

54.

55.

T e penalty specified above, shall represent civil penalties assessed biEPA and shall not be
d ductible for purposes of Federal taxes.

A I of the terms and conditions of this CAFO together comprise one a reement, and each of
th terms and conditions is in consideration of all of the other terms ~d conditions. In the
e nt that this CAFO, or one or more of its terms and conditions, is h .ld invalid, or is not

10
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J cuted by all of the signatories in identical fonn, or is not approved in such identical form
b~ he Regional Administrator or his designee, then the entire CAFO s~all be null and void.

VI. WAIVER OF HEARING

RtpfPondent hereby expressly waives its right to a hearing, pursuant to Section 1423(c)(3)(A)
oulhe SOWA, 42 U.S.C. § 300h-2(c)(3)(A), on any issue oflaw or factllin this mailer and
cd Isents to issuance of this CAFO without adjudication. The Respond/:nt also waives its right
to ppealthe Final Order issucd in this case.

VII. RESERVATION OF RIGHTS

T~ s Consent Agreement and the accompanying Final Order resolve on y thc civil claims for
th specific violations alleged in this CAFO. EPA reserves the right to commence action
ag inst any person, including Respondent, in response to any condition that EPA detemlines
m' present an imminent and substantial endangennent to the public h~'alth, public welfare, or
th: environment. In addition, this selliement is subject to all limitation on the scope of
re lution and to the reservation of rights set forth in 40 C.F.R. § 22.1 (c). Further, EPA
rei rves any rights and remedies available to it under the SOWA, 42 U S.C. § 300f, et. seq.,
th, regulations promulgated thereunder, and any other federal laws or rfgulations for which
E has jurisdiction, to enforce the provisions of this CAFO, following its filing with the
R

1

ional Hearing Clerk. j
N1thing in this CAFO shall be construed as prohibiting, altering or in ny way eliminating the
a~' Iity of EPA to seck any other remedies or sanctions available by vi ue of Respondent's
vi: lations of this CAFO or of the statutes and regulations upon which 1hiS CAFO is based or
fl Respondent's violation of any applicable provision oflaw.

E ry of this CAFO is a final selliement of all civil violations alleged ih this CAFO. EPA
s~ II have the right to institute a new and separate action to recover additional civil penalties
fd the claims made in this CAFO if the EPA obtains evidencc that thel infonnation and/or
r~ resen~ation~?fthe Responde~tare false, or, in any ~ater~al. respe~tl ~naccurate. This right
sll II be III addl\lon to all other nghts and causes ofaC\lon, cIvIl or cnIllllal, the EPA may
h~ e under law or equity in such event.

I~ uance of this ORDER is not an election by the EPA to forgo any ci il or any criminal action
ot er than the civil violations resolved by this action. I

VIII. PUBLIC NOTICE

61. P, suant to Section 300h-2(c)(3)(B) of the SDWA, 42 U.S.C. § I423(f)(3)(B), and 40 C.F.R.
§ 2.45(b), EPA is providing public notice and an opportunity to comment on the Consent

I I
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reement prior to issuing the Final Order.

IX. EFFECTIVE DATE

T is CAFO will be issued after a forty (40) day comment period, exertion by an authorized
r

l

resentative ofthc Environmental Protection Agency and filing wit the regional hearing
dl rk. It will become final and effective thirty (30) days after issuance .

12
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Th'r undersigned representative of Respondent certifies that he is fully a thorized by CNX Gas
Co' pany LLC to enter into the terms and conditions of this CAFO and to execute and legally

:j ::rONDENT
Nichola eIuliis, Preside t
CNX as Company LLC
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, sued this~ day of S (" (? t~ Yy ", <1. .. oJ 0 10

F R COMPLAINANT:

14


